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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Paw Paw building or Paw Paw was built in 1821 by the
First Methodist Episcopal congregation of Port Deposit. This
slightly rectangular building measures 36' x 40'. It is two
stories in height and has a hip roof covered with asbestos
shingles. The Paw Paw is constructed of stone covered with
plaster on both the interior and the exterior. There was a
box pulpit very high at the north end. Across the southern
end was a gallery for the black members of the congregation
who had a separate entrance in the southeastern corner of the
church. There were also separate entrances for the ‘men: and
women. The women's entrance was also on the north side of the
building, but at the western end of that wall. The men's entrance
was on the facade of the Paw Paw. Once inside the:chutch;-
the women sat on the eastern side and the men sat on the
western. Located centrally on the rear wall is a chimney made
of brick which was for an old stove. The window sash throughout
are 6/6. Some of them remain but are without glass. Every
window had louvered shutters in 1914 and most of these are
on the building site:z. Several of the shutters on the facade
have strap hinges. Over the windows there are stone and wooden
lintels as well as splayed arches of stone. There is no conformity
or pattern evident. The exterior is very plain as is the box
cornice and the frieze board. Each of the doors is panelled
and has a transom over it. The sills of the doors are granite.

The facade of the Paw Paw has a centrally located entrance.
A raised platform.porch once extended from it with stairs
leading down to a lower level on the south (in 1914 picture).
This door is flanked on both sides by a pair of windows. The
second story has two windéws located an:. either side' of the center
of the building like the first s#ibry. Directly over the first
floor door is an indented square space which could have housed
a name or date placque. The rear wall of the Paw Paw has no-
windows or doors.

The northern exterior wall has five windows, thrée on-the
first story and two on the second. I&s southern counterpart has
two panelled entrance doors located at each end with one window
in the middle. On the second story there are two windows evenly
separated. o c o R

The interior of the first story has a new floor. Dividing
the building in half are three square columns spaced at different
intervals. On the east wall the brick chimney is visible. This
was connected to a small stove on each story. The interior of
the second story has had the most alteration: Where there was no
floor but open space for those in the gallery to listen and watch
a floor has been added. One long hewn beam is exposed running
north and south. Off of the main room which is located over the
men's seating section are three small rooms. All of the doors
on the second floor are panelled and have architrave trim. The

See continuatijion sheet 1.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Paw Paw building was-used as a church from the time
of its erection in 1821 until 1839 when a new church was built
across the street. In the 1820's it was one of the churches
on the Cecil and Strasburg circuits. After 1839 it was used
as a school and was called Heath of Health Academy from the name
of the teacher... From 1852 to 1867 the building serwved
as a meeting place for Harmony Lodge. In 1860 it was also
‘known as the 0dd Fellows Academy which was a local school.

In 1877 the Cornish family operated a grocery store and
"dining S8alon" in the Paw Paw. In 1894 Snow's Battery held
their reunion at the "0dd Fellows Hall." This group was a society
of Civil War Veterans, all from Port Deposit.

Until recently the building has been used as an apartment
and also a recreation hall for the youth of the town. During
the 1950's record hops and square dances were held on the first
floor. PR RIS

The Port Deposit Heritage, Inc- 1ntends to restore the
building to its 1914 appearance and use the Paw Paw. for a llbrary .
and museum.

In 1849, Mr, Elijah Reynolds had to move his carpenter
shop into the Academy due to ice damage to his shop. ’

The following. ;s from December 15, 1888 edition of the
Whig (Elkton): .

"In 1824 he [Rev. John Goforth] was on the Dauphin Circuit
and in 1826 was junior preacher for Cecil Circuit.. He was
virtually in charge of Rock Run the first three years of its
history (1819-1821) and in the latter year the first or Paw Paw
church was built against the hill about the middle of the town
on land donated by the mother of the Hon. J.A. J. Cresswell.

It is a solid stone building, 36' x 40'....

"In May 1839, the official board resolved to build a new
church.... It is a solid granite structure opposite the first
or Paw Paw church, and was dedicated December 29, 1839....
(Nesbitt Hall - 40' x 55'.)

CONTINUED
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Description - continued

ceiling of the main room has some crown moulding under it.

The baseboard of this room changes as it reaches the north

and south walls. It slowly arches upward about one and a half
feet then runs across the wall to the side where it again

slopes downward. The stairway to the second floor id completely
enclosed and separated from the first floor by a plaster wall.
The interior walls are lath covered by plaster. The main room
has some wallpaper remaining on the walls.

Outside of the black's entrance are several granite stones
arranged in a square to form a small stoop. Extending from
the northeast corner of the Paw Paw and running parallel to
the facade is a stone retaining wall which is broken only for
steps down to the street level. Near the southwest corner are
several granite steps leading down from the side entrances to
the ground between the Paw Paw and the retaining wall.

GPO 892 455
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Statement of Significance - continued

"During the pastorate of J.A. Brindle, Hon. Jacob Tome
had begun the erection of the third structure as a memorial
to his wife, a short distance north of the first and on the
same side of the street. This was finished in 1872....

"This handsome structure is 55' x 102'---- it will be
perceived that every time we have built a new church we have
taken the length of the next preceding for the width of the
new--- and this promises to be more than adequate for all
the needs of the indefinite future...."

GPO 892 455



Form No. 10-300a
(Hev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM

Paw Paw Building
Cecil County
CONTINUATION SHEETMaryland ITEM NUMBER 8 PAGE 3

ADDENDUM TO SIGNIFICANCE

Port Deposit Heritage, Inc. believes the Paw Paw Building should
be nominated to the National Register for Historic Places for the
following reasons:

Now called the Paw Paw building because of two trees of that
species which once grew in its frontyard, this structure was built in
1821 as the Methodist Episcopal Church on land owned by John and Rebecca
Creswell. 1In 1829 the Creswells gave the land to the Church for the sum

of one cent in hand.l] It is one among the half dozen oldest buildings
in Port Deposit, It was the ONLY church in the town for at least
eighteen years, until 1839 when a new church was built across the

street, now known as Nesbitt Hall. A school was then started in the qld
church, not only for religious purposes, but for educational instruction
as well.

Tome Memorial Church, built in 1872 next to the original church
(or Paw Paw building), is the third of this church complex, all still
standing. When Nesbitt Hall was built, the length of the first church
(36 x 40) was used as the width of Nesbitt Hall (40 x 55), and when
Tome Memorial was built, the length of Nesbitt Hall was used as the width
of Tome Memorial (55 x 102). The Rev. J. P. Otis wrote in 1888: "This
handsome structure is 55 x 102 -- it will be perceived that every time
we have built a new church we have taken the length of the next pre-
ceeding for the width of the new -- this promises to be more than adequate
for the indefinite future."

The old Methodist church was used as an academy, starting in 1821
with one pupil and growing to number one hundred students by 1837,
divided into thirteen classes of white and one of colored children.-
The school continued to grow and by 1873 there were two hundred eighty
nine scholars. From the January 5, 1873 report is the following:
"the Secretary congratulates the school upon its removal from the
cramped quarters in the old church to the gleasant rooms and abundant
accomodations of the new (Nesbitt Hall)." During these years the
0ld Methodist Episcopal or the Paw Paw was often referred to as the
Port Deposit Academy.

In 1844 the Independent Order of 0Odd Fellows' Mt. Pisgah Lodge #24,
which had been organized in 1834, signed a ninety-nine year lease for
the upper or second story of the 0ld Methodist Episcopal Church, and such
ground privilege as was necessary for access to and from and as much of
the first story as was needed.

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 4.
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ADDENDUM TO SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

They were required to erect a flight of stairs to the second story,
not to exceed 12 feet 6 inches in length or more than 7 feet in width,
and the lease was to run from the first day of April_1843 for ninety-
nine years with yearly rent of $10.00 current money.

On the Jack map of 1860 the Paw Paw lot no. 19 is designated as
the 0dd Fellows Academy Lot; also, in land records of the deeds of lot
no. 19, it is called the 0dd Fellows Academy Lot. In the Historic
Records of the Methodist Episcopal Sunday School, dated January, 1871,
50th Year, it is written: "A vote of thanks was tendered to the Trustee:
of the 0dd Fellows Hall for the use of it for the lectures." The
archives in the Grand Lodge of Baltimore, Brisc Building, have minutes
showing rent was paid by the 0dd Fellows to the Methodist church until
1891, and then to Jacob Tome until 1905.

The Paw Paw was used as a meeting place for Harmony Lodge, a
Masonic order still active in Port Deposit from 1851-1867.

For many years the old Methodist Episcopal Church was a center
of community activities a it has been adapted to many useful purposes
It has been standing forESG)years through ice gorges and floods, and it
is still structurally sound” enough that we plan to restore it as a
library and museum to house the many antiquities associated with our
town.

References.
lpeed JAD 23/290, Cecil County Courthouse
2Church histories of all other churches in town

3Historical Records of Methodist Episcopal Sunday School, Port
Deposit

40tis, The Rev. J.P., Methodism in Port Deposit," Sketches of Cecil
County M.E. Churches, The Whig, Elkton, Dec. 15, 1888. Also by actual
measurement

SHistorical Records of Methodist Episcopal Sunday School, Port
Deposit

SEE CONTINUATION SHEET 5.
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ADDENDUM TO SIGNIFICANCE (Continued)

References (Continued

6peed GMC #7/351, Cecil County Courthouse
"Deed GMC #7/35], Cecil County Courthouse

8History of Harmony Lodge #53, from Lodge Records located in Cecil
National Bank, Port Deposit

Grace C. Humphries.

President

Port Deposit Heritage, Inc.
Port Deposit, Maryland 21904



